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HISTORY OF BETHEL #ETHONIST QHURCH S 7 % c
BOliV1f‘L. N.Co Bru,pymw.}c., Ceo. LL:L/L"VL-(_.M- s ; [ -

‘ho were the founders of iethodism in Bollvia? There'is no record
to give the nauwes of persons who started kethodist Church services
in Bolivia, North Carolina,

Bishop Francis Asbury organized lethodist Societles in Brunswick
county in 1800 gnd 1801 and could have helped start our church,
Kethodism spread rapidly and by 1851 there were twelve Methodist
churches in our area., These twelve churches made up the Bruaswick
Circuit (later called the Suithville Circuit).At thatl tiwe the Bruns-
wick Circuit was in the Camden District of the South Caroling Con=
ference. The South Carolina Conierence included all of South Car-
olina, Georgia and a conslderavic part of Horth Carcolina. Local
preachers,exnorters, arnd class Jleadcrs were chosen Lo help the
preacher with his heavy locad ol work, '

The first known location of & kethodist church in Bolivia wus
on the Philiip Cox place, and was calied "Litlle Zora,®

The next location of cur churcn was at Gap Braach (iiddle Swauap)
near the James Harvell place, This was a2 1og bullding snd was called
Zora., Here Christopher Coluuwbus Mercer (Grandfatiner of irs.olive
Duilant ldercer) was the Sunday School leader. He also malutalned &
library for the church, sold religious books and was very active
in other church work. At the conference in 1853, he was granted a
license to preach, Some of the members oi thig church were Cox's
Flower's, Harvells, ilcKees,McKeithans, Mercer's, liontgomery's
Murrels, Sellers and others,

The congregation declded to build a new church at snother
location., Tne location of this buillding was:at the Ross place (near:
the Roscoe liintz place). The name of the new church was "BETHEL",

The land for this church was deeded to the trustees of Bethel Church
Oct,. 22,1907 by Alex Rebinson and his wife Fannie Robinson., The trustees
were James H., Knox, John F., Kercer, Willlam Eichorn and James K,
Harvell. Deed was notarized by J,P.Cox,.

Edward iercer, Williaum lercer, George liurrell, Duncam Harvell,
Jim Harvell, Thomas lcKeithan and others helpe& build this church,

It was a large one room building, well finished with glass windows
and white plastered inside walls, The ceiling and floor were of planed
boards, but were not tongue and groove. The roof and outside walls
were of hand hewn cypress shingles., There were two front doors and
two aisles, A row of long pews was down the center of the building
and a2 row of short pews was down each side, Small oil laups were
mounted on the brown window facings eand a large laup was in the cen-
ter on & post, There was wo musiczl lastruuent in the church. The
regular "preaching Sunday® was the second Sunday of each month. At
the services,the men would sit on the right side of the charch and
the ladles would sl on the left, Sunday Scheol hud to close during
the winter wonths because there were no heating facilities., & meumber
of this church,D.A,Fatrell, became a preacher and a member of the
lethodist Coaference, Tue Cox's,Flowers, Harvells, RKnox's, kcXelthans
kercer's, Rosses, Sellers, Skippers and others were members of this
church, Services were held in this building until about 1916,

The congregation again decided to build & new building near
the center of' the arca served by the church. On April 29,1916
A.Lolercer and his wife M.D.lMercer gave to0 Bethel Church 1,22
acres of land as a site for a new cnurch building. This property



Page 2

was on the Wilxzington road, near the Zdwards place in Bollvia (across
the road froam the W.K.Cox home(®p, The Trustees at that time were A, M,
xMoore, W.E.Elchorn and T.J.MNercer. This deed was notarized by %.0.
MeKelthan,Justice of the Feuce of BErunswick County. oServices were
held in this church building for the first time the latter part of
1916, “ev, W.R.Hoyal was the pastor and worked very hard to get this
building finisned. This was a one room building with a shingle roof
and weather boarded walls, X¥rs., Mattle Cox Lewis,the first church
organist, loaned & reed organ to furnish amusic for the services.lirs
Genceva Cox Jones was the assistant organist. The Church Library was
stilli malntuined, Services were Lald in thils building uatil it was
wrecked by a storm in 1917, This piece of land was soid teo lir.J.A.
Villletts Yfor the sum of one hundred and fifty six dollarsd.

FeloGulloway and wifle Annie laultsby Gallowsy, gave our present
lot to Betnel, on Larch 8, 1918. Trustces were T.Jd.lercer, .B.Eichorn
Ao loOOre and thelr succussors. Recorded in Book 29 page 289, Wulter
Leongrd, HNotary Fubllc,

while our present building was under construction,the Holiness
and Baptlst churciies opened thelr doors (o our congregation and very
few services were uissed, The mewbers donated labor and naterialé and
were able to cnclose the building so scrvices could be neld in 1919,

F, B, Galloway,Lester Fdwards and i7.0.XcKeithan contracted the building.
Ve UelicKelthun nade the sltar rail and fixed the windows, Tiie steeple
with the belil was the first in any of the iethodist churches in Bolivia.
The orgun froa the wrecked church was used unitil a piano could be
purchased, irs. Frunces Lewis Dizon made a very nice straw coilection
plateto ve used., D.i,l'atkins was pastor at the tine this building

was completed, The building was insured for $1C00.CO in lMarch,152

at a cost of [8,60,The Sunday School rooms were added in 1937.3Rev,

WeJ . Freeman was pastor at that time and worked very hard to get them
finished ., Timber was given by Tharps,Danfords, Knoxs znd others und
everyone joined together in doing the work. Guilbert and Hazel Cox
was the first couple married in this building.

Bethel av this tlme was on the Tomn Creek Charge, and there were
four churches on this charge, They were Bethel ,Piney Grove,Shilch and
Zion, Our parsonage was at Zion near Town Creek,

Rev, walter Pavy, & natlive ol ingland, caue to owr charge in 1940.
He held services in all of the four churches on the charge, had a radio
program in “iluington,North Carolins ,did much work with the young
people und stirred all of the pecople tp more active service. He cone
ducted religious services regularly at the Bolivia School and died on
his way to conduct one of these services.in 1943,

He was truly a *"circuit rider"-not on horse back, but on his bicycle,
which he rode to hold wmostu of his services,

luch progress wes made by our church under the wninistry of Rev,
Russell H,Caudill, Xany new nembers were added snd repairs were mede
to the church &nd personage at Town Creck. He served our charge from
1948 through 1981, A new Baldwin electric orgen wes purchascd for the
church in 1954 vhile Rev. C,L.%arren was pastor.

Bethel became a Station church in February 1958. Dr.J.2E.Garlington,
Distrlet Superintendent, had the opportunity to secure an gdditionul
minister for the Wilmington District. At this time Rev., Alden Feuminpway
was serving as pastor of the Town Creek charge and was asxed to finish
ocout the year at Bethel. 4t annual conference in 1958 Rev. Hemingway was
appointed to mervire serve Rolivie,Bethel Charge, for the coming year.
Since we now had a full time pastor 1t was necessary to build a parsonage.
The lerd for the parsonege was decded to the trustees of Bethel lletho-
dist Church,Bolivia,N.C, by R.K.cKelthen snd his wife Fvelyn McKeithan
on Kov.13,18t8, Trustees were D,L.lercer,E.C.Eichorn and J.¥.Danford.
Notarized by Varren Sellers,
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Mr, Troy Henry gave the use of his home in Bolivia (across fromn Bol-
ivia High School) for a parsonage until the new one was completed,

On October 26th 1958, the Ground Breaking Ceremony was held for the
new parsonage. (Our Homecoming was held the same day) and V.X,Cox
dug the flrst shovel of earth. On February 10th 1999 work wes actually
begun on the foundation of the building. A large part of the timber
was donated by members of the church and some of the men, along with
Rev, Hemingway, cut the trees and sawed the lumber. Much of the nat-
erial and labor was donated by members and non-members of the church,
but 1t was necessary to secure a lcan of $3500.,00 from the Board of
Misslons of the Methodist Church for a period of ten years. 3By the
end of June 1959 the outside of the bullding was completed and some
of the inside work was done,

Mrs, bdna Maultsby Gasxill and lir. Marshall Frink were marrcied
by Rev. Hemingway in the tempory parsonage on ligy 6th 18S9,

At annaal coaference of June 1909, llev, Jack TFulghum was sent
to this charge. Troy Henry's house was still being used as the par-
sonage, nrev, rful:shum moved into the new parsonage on November 28th
1909, und lived there until annual coaference,

Palcolm Knox and Judy MHaultsby were the f{irst couple married in
the new parsonage. They were married by Rev. Fulghua,

Rev, Kermit llorris was sent to Bethel in June 1960 and served
for cne year,

Rev, H.K.Jeanneret was pastor at Bethel from July 1961 until
June 1963, During his two years here a new roof was put on the church
at a cost of ©$615,00, also the inside of the church wus remodeled,
the floers vwere finished and new lightis ware installed in the sanc-
tuary(the lizhts were given by the Jeanneret family.)

It was at the annual conference of June 1961 that Bethel at
Boliivia, N.C. and Concord at Supply, N.C, came together as the
Bethel-Concord charge.Rev.Jeanneret served both of these churches,

At Anaual Conference in June 1963, Rev. Jaunes A, Starnes was
dssigned to the Bethel-Concord charge., He was still in Seainary in
Atlants,Georgla so Rev.J.M.carroll(retired) served in his place un-
til iarch 1964, Rev, Starnes came in larch 1964 and served until
June 1965, He was wall liked by all and everyone enjoyed his radio
progren, "Inis Day With God" on the Shaliotte Radio Station. He
glso nad an article each week in The Brunswick Beacon, Plans were
made to repair the ocutside of the church and some work had been done
before conference,

At annual conference in June 1365,Rev. J.P.Pegg was sent to
this charge., Repalr work was finished and the church was painted
on the ocutside 1n Decenber,l965. Rev. Pegg visited each member of
the church living in the community regularly.

In June 1967 Rev. J.,C. Duan came to our charge and served for
five years., He was well liked by all but was unable to move in our
parsonage and live in the comuunity,because he was also Director of
Ihe Good Siieperd Home at lLake Vaccamaw,l.C. and had a great responsi-
bility there, iluch was accomplished during his five year stay, With
his help and supervision and labor from the men at the Good Sheperd
Hone,anew altar was built and all the psws refinlished., The sanctuary
was painted and a new heating and air conditioning system was installed.

when irs,ilinnie Wilson died she left some noney to be used for
the church,the church members added to 1t and purchased new pulpit
furniture., Our new collection plates were given in memory of Royal
Danford ,by Regan Construction Co, of Wilmington, N.C,

Rev, E,R.Schuller came to our charge in June 1972, and served far
one year, He was retired and lived at Youpon Beach, Being so ncer his
work he preferred to live in his own home,so our parsonage was still
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rented to the principal off Bolivia Schoeool, Vhile serving our church
Rev, Schuller taught a preparatpry membership class and received
seven young pecple into the church, lMoney was raisedi to buy tha
cross and candlesticks for the altar, '

Rev.T.H.Housce cnme to serve our chsrge in June 1973 as a part
tine nminister, lie was living in Southport, n.Ce. at this time and
was recovering frowm & heert attack, It can hardly be said that he
was & part time minister as he never mlssed a gervice ,visited in
the community every weelt, attended ull meetings and was always ready
to help when needed, He was eppointed full tine minister at the 1874
conference, He snd his wife iery Etta are living in our parsonage
now,and it is good to have a methodist minister living in Bolivia
after seven years without one, :

With God working through the Tulted lethodlst Women snd the
help of Rev, and lirs, House the parsonage was ccupletely redecorated
ingide.

tuch preparation was made for our 1974 spring revival. The
church was painted on the outside and some work done inside, A
religious census was taken in the coununity. Rev. John T.,Maides

brother of Mrs., R.7.Mercer) was the evengelist . The services
were well attended by many of the churches in our area., Ve are
beginning our new year 1975,much has already been acconpplished,
many projects started, end with the help of God,the pastor and
each member, we are looking forwerd to a great year,
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